Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you'll enjoy
the following benefits:

- Efficient, integrated PDF viewing
- Easy printing

« Quick searches

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8,
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.



http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html


Transportation Task Force
2/20/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Jim Bensman Charlie Jeter Mayor John Woods
Andrew Grant Mitch Abraham Mayor Jill Swain
Brian Jenest Gary Knox
Chris Ahearn Lawrence Kimbrough

Mitch Abraham

Accidents on 1-77 — four towns Police Chiefs

Cornelius Police Chief Bence Hoyle explained that in March 2007 the Police Chiefs for Huntersville,
Cornelius and Davidson began meeting for the purpose to identify mutual issues and possible solutions
that would assist the communities individually and jointly in an effort to mitigate surface traffic when a
collision occurs on |-77. Several meetings were held in an attempt to improve communication between
the towns and other agencies and each of the chiefs were assigned a different component of the
integrated traffic mitigation program.

Early on it was determined that there was need for a governing body to address the issues of traffic
volume, land use/planning, and future NCDOT road improvements that the police departments have no
control of.

A play book has been created that can be used to mitigate surface traffic depending on the location of a
traffic accident on I-77 and its duration.

Chief Hoyle’s was assigned communication issues between agencies and has implemented a process of
dispatching an officer to any traffic congested scene, evaluate the congestion, and alert the other
agencies that might be affected including Mooresville and Iredell County.

Davidson Police Chief Jeanne Miller explained that her component was to identify specific traffic
scenarios and create a response effort “play book”. The ability to respond is driven by community roads
and the ability to connect. Using Exit 25 in Huntersville as an example, HPD would need 8-10 officers in
order to manually control the intersection and during rush hour and/or gridlock a rotating shift would be
necessary. The NCDOT play book was also reviewed to ensure that the detour information was
accurately broadcasted to the public.

Although the four towns are connected and assumed to be one region the boundary line of
Mecklenburg County and Iredell county are looked at as two separate districts by NCDOT and SHP (State
Highway Patrol) which adds an additional layer of confusion and communication. The governmental
entities need to collectively work together to re-evaluate the county line issues.

Mr. Kimbrough asked if the play book identifies an evacuation plan in event of a natural disaster.
Creating a regional plan with legal jurisdiction may capture the attention of NCDOT and SHP when
referring to the county lines issue. Chief Miller stated that they have not got to that point.





Huntersville Police Chief Phil Potter explained that Huntersville PD did a pilot project that placed traffic
units on the interstate. Although traffic seemed to slow down and there were no reported accidents
during the project, some tax payers question the use of tax dollars on the interstate.

There are traffic grants available for full time officers dedicated to traffic and vehicles; however, grants
for overtime on speed enforcement projects do not exist. Chief Potter suggested that political
leadership assist the police departments with trying to obtain grant money for speed enforcement
projects.

Mr. Jeter asked if HPD can issue tickets on the interstate. Chief Potter stated that citations can be issued
within the town’s jurisdiction and one mile beyond. During the pilot program approximately 40-50
citations were issued a month with speeds in excess of 85mph.

The Highway Patrol district headquarters for the area is located in Monroe; however, the new DMV
office be built in Huntersville could be an opportunity for a new Highway Patrol post which would help
increase their presence and visibility.

Mayor Swain asked if there were other alternatives to deter speeding (i.e. dummies in patrol cars,
automated speed signs). Chief Potter stated that there are alternatives that do have an impact. Chief
Miller stated that doubling the fine amount would also have an impact.

The focus for State Troopers has changed from interstate policing to community policing of secondary
roads according to additional meetings that were held but could not be verified. Chief Potter stated that
if that was in fact the case, then it was time to ask for additional help on the interstates. Mayor Knox
stated that secondary roads that carry 3,500 cars a day have more Highway Patrol coverage because in
rural counties they are the 911 responders.

Chief Potter stated that there has been discussion of having a cooperative enforcement schedule on I-77
to create a constant police presence between Exits 23 and 36. Mr. Jeter asked if the departments would
cross jurisdictions. Chief Hoyle explained that each department would work the stretch of the interstate
with in the town’s jurisdiction. Chief Miller stated that it is important for the elected officials to
acknowledge that the effort spent on the interstate is also working to keep the local town roads free of
congestion.

Mayor Knox asked who would patrol the interstate between Exits 32 and 36.

Mooresville Police Chief John Crone explained that Mooresville does patrol that area. The most
important issue is that the four towns will now have police presence within the 13 mile stretch of
interstate that connects them. Chief Crone stated that he is a member of the Governor’s Highway
Safety Project Executive Committee. The committee was responsible for the installation of the median
strip barricades that prevent cross over head on collisions; however, the barricades have eliminated the
ability to use radar from the opposite direction.

The Town of Mooresville added seven new officers in 2007. The Highway Patrol added seven new
officers in 2007 which is the same amount of new officers as Mooresville but the new highway patrol
officers were hired for the entire State of North Carolina.





Mayor Knox explained that two years ago the Safety Division of NCDOT was asked to do an assessment
on the phenomena of traffic backups between Exits 18 and 36 but the assessment report has never
been seen. Chief Miller stated that she had requested accident data from NCDOT between the exits and
has not received it as well.

Mr. Bensman stated that the Chiefs needed to present a collaborative police project during the budget
phase. Alternate routes should be thought through and properly posted in an effort to minimize the
traffic congestion. Chief Hoyle stated that directing traffic is a key factor but it has not been perfected.

Chief Hoyle explained that accident prevention is the most important but in the event of an accident,
quick clearance is critical. The I-95 Corridor Coalition Quick Clearance Committee did a federal study on
how to clear an accident scene. The four towns are working together to localize the information and
implement a process. The response group involves police, fire, medic, media, and the wrecker service.
The categories of detection, verification, clean-up, and communication are being defined under each
response group. The difficulty of defining the categories is the governing policies of each response
group. Political support will be needed to iron out some defining issues.

Chief Miller explained that when considering the extension of smart signs from Exit 18 going north the
cost per mile was projected to be in the millions because of the cost of running the fiber. Mr. Abraham
stated that the fiber optics may already exist because of Time Warner and suggested working some type
of deal with them.

Mayor Knox asked where the CLEAR training was done and if CPCC North Campus could handle
facilitating the training. Chief Crone stated that cooperation and training needs to be done. Mayor
Swain suggested contacting Beverly Dickson about the possibilities that CPCC might add and then hold a
workshop involving all emergency entities. Chief Miller reminded everyone of the two counties and the
cooperation at the county level that is also needed.

Mr. Bensman asked that the chiefs create a list of things needed by governing agencies (i.e. NCDOT,
Highway Patrol) in order to gain support for funding.

Representative Thom Tillis suggested that the police define the “what” and the committee define the
“how”. He asked what the typical time line was for debris removal versus incident reporting. Chief
Miller stated that the wrecker service generally cleans up the scene. Chief Crone stated that it usually
takes about 30 minutes to clear the scene of glass and load up the vehicles. Rep. Tillis suggested
following a procedure used in Florida where the wrecker service is paid with a tiered bonus plan passed
by legislation. Mr. Jeter asked that the list be prioritized by importance. Mr. Grant suggested the list be
compiled by March 5™.

Rep. Tillis stressed the importance of creating a list but encouraged that all emergency entities be
recognized as stake holders and reconciling the different lists (i.e. Police, Fire, EMS, and State Police).

Mr. Kimbrough asked if reducing the speed limit to 55mph on I-77 from Exit 36 into Charlotte would
reduce traffic accidents. Chief Miller stated that the lower speed limit would allow drivers more
reaction time. Mr. Kimbrough asked who regulates the speed limit for the interstate. Chief Miller
stated that it was either NCDOT or the State Federal Highway. Mr. Bensman stated that unless the speed
limit is enforced it does not matter what the speed limit is. Mayor Woods stated that the region is now





more urban than the section of Statesville section that is 55mph and suggested that the speed limit be
55mph from 1-40 through to Charlotte and the speed limit should be enforced.

Adjournment
6:43PM






Transportation Task Force
1/2/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Randy Kincaid, Chairman Andrew Grant, Ex. Director Mayor Swain, Huntersville
Gary Knox, Vice Chairman Karen Floyd, Secretary Mayor Tarte, Cornelius
Mitch Abraham Chris Ahearn Mayor Thunberg, Mooresville
Jim Bensman Carroll Gray Mayor Woods, Davidson

Brian Jenest Charlie Jeter
Lawrence Kimbrough

Air Quality Consideration — Eldewins Haynes, Charlotte Department of Transportation

The topic of air quality was chosen by Mayor Kincaid because it relates to most aspects that will be
discussed by the task force.

Mr. Haynes, of Charlotte Department of Transportation, explained that air quality is tied to
transportation. On road transportation sources are responsible for 55% of the region’s air pollution.

Mayor Knox stated that the federal government has mandated that a plan must be in place to achieve
the reduction of NOx in non-attainment areas in the region. Mr. Haynes explained that the federal
mandate requires that the area transportation plans meet the on-road transportation emissions and do
not exceed certain limits.

Mr. Gray asked if the plan was date specific. Mr. Haynes stated that the critical date is June 15, 2010.
The EPA will then determine whether or not the ozone standards have been achieved. The ozone
season runs from April to October and the EPA decision will be based on those seasons of 2007-2009.

Mayor Kincaid asked who was in charge of the action plan. Mr. Haynes stated that the air quality plan,
called the State Implementation Plan, is governed by the State. A large element of the plan deals with
power plant emissions; cars, trucks, and diesel emission elements are being driven at the Federal level.
This plan will determine how the region will come into attainment by the required date and will also
require EPA approval.

Mr. Kimbrough questioned what determined the impoundment of federal funding for highways if the air
quality standards are not met. Mr. Haynes clarified that there is no impact on highway funding if the air
quality is not met in the mitigation plan. If the air quality standards are not achieved by 2010, only new
point sources (e.g., plants) will be affected by sanctions. The only rules affecting vehicles are federal
rules on what the emissions standards are for new vehicles.

Mr. Haynes explained that the State generates a mitigation plan for each region. There are several ways
to help the reduction of emissions: providing alternate transportation, improving sidewalks, adding bike
lanes, and improving road efficiency. These are all key factors to reducing congestion without increasing
pollution. There has to be a certain amount of traffic congestion in order to help regulate pollution. If
traffic idles too long it creates higher levels of pollution but if traffic moves with ease, vehicles then
travel at a faster rate of speed which also increases the level of pollution. The optimum vehicle speed





for low emission is between 25 and 45 mph. A balance needs to be obtained between reducing
congestion and lowering pollution.

Mayor Thunberg explained that when the transportation plan was being developed there was
collaboration between SEQ and EPA to ensure that the plan incorporated everything needed to meet
the required measurements. Mayor Kincaid stated there seemed to be some disconnect between the
DOT plan and the EPA action required.

Mayor Kincaid asked if there were any constraints concerning air quality the committee would be faced
with. Mayor Knox stated that the federal government has mandated the State implement an air quality
plan but questioned if the State would fund the implementation of the plan and if any local funding
opportunities could be created. Mayor Swain then asked if there were funds associated with the
attainment of the plan. Mr. Haynes stated that he did not recall any funding available by the State for air
quality projects.

Mayor Tarte asked if the committee would be doing something during other action items that will help
the improvement of air quality. Mayor Thunberg said the four towns need to be in sync with each
other’s transportation plan. Mr. Jeter asked if it was possible to get a copy of the plan as it relates to
each Town. Mr. Brice said to contact Norm Steinman of CDOT for copies.

Mr. David Carol stated that the next plan will be impossible to achieve if the current plan is not done.
Mayor Thunberg stated that the group needs to focus on the things they can control and collaboratively
work together on road improvements that will benefit the entire area instead of waiting on the State.
Mayor Swain agreed but said she would like financial recognition by the State for those efforts put forth
as a group. Mayor Knox suggested being ahead of the curve may enable some type of available
funding. Mayor Swain suggested coming up with a list of improvements that could be done
collaboratively. Mr. Gray stated that commonality projects may be factors of influence by the State
when considering funding. Mayor Thunberg stated that by joining together, funding opportunities can
be maximized.

Mr. Grant asked how the approval of new projects will impact the plan. Mr. Haynes explained that at
certain horizon years (2015, 2025, and 2035) throughout the plan it will be necessary to show that the
air quality goals are met and that the plan is fiscally constrained. Every project will need a funding
source. The funding shortfall at the State level has affected the entire state. Mr. Haynes stated that a
copy of the Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) can be found at www.mumpo.org .

Mayor Swain stated that connectivity is a key factor. Mr. Jenest commented that a comprehensive
connectivity plan between all towns would be beneficial.

Future Topic Discussion
Mr. Grant went through the list of meeting dates and confirmed that all meetings will be held on
Wednesday evenings at Cornelius Town Hall, Room 204, 5PM — 7PM.

Mr. Bensman asked who would be writing the report. Mayor Kincaid stated that he will write the report.
The draft format will be in bullet form followed by the group’s recommendation. Mayor Kincaid
welcomed all thoughts and comments through email.





Mr. Jeter asked if more time could be allowed for the Commuter Rail topic. Mr. Grant said he would
look into arranging more time.

Ms. Ahearn asked if signalization would be part of the topic discussion as retiming of lights could have a
huge impact. Mayor Thunberg stated that if the scope is within the town’s control it should be given
consideration.

Mr. Jenest asked if any public/private partnerships (TIFS) for funding would be discussed. Mr. Grant
made a note to add the TIF topic to the meetings list for discussion.

Mayor Kincaid summed up the meeting by listing the following points of interest agreed upon by the
group:

* Obtain adequate facts on topics of discussion

* Create actionable facts

e Create a useful report

e Define joint action by all four towns

e Recognize all four towns are in it together for the long haul

Information Link
For additional information and Task Force updates please refer to the Town of Davidson’s website
www.ci.davidson.nc.us

Adjournment
6:54PM






Transportation Task Force
1/16/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Randy Kincaid, Chairman Karen Floyd, Secretary
Gary Knox, Vice Chairman Chris Ahearn
Jim Bensman Lawrence Kimbrough

Charlie Jeter
Buses; What are we doing now, mesh with Transit Corridor — Larry Kopf, CATS & Janet Thomas, CMS

Ms. Janet Thomas has been with CMS for 20 years and explained the following things that affect school
bus transportation in North Carolina:
* The State Board of Education governs how bus stops are set up, bus routing, and bus
maintenance.
e The State of North Carolina owns the buses and sets the specifications for them.
e Public school laws control what can and cannot be done with transportation.
* The State Tort Claims Acts covers bus accidents.
e All bus drivers must have a Commercial Drivers License (CDL) and complete a four day classroom
training course followed by a five day on-the-road training course.

Additional regulations of consideration when providing school bus transportation are:
¢ National Highway Traffic Safety Administration
* Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration
* No Child Left Behind Act
¢ McKinney-Vento Homeless Assistance
* Individuals with Disabilities Education Act

Local policies that regulate transportation are:
e Student assignment plan
e Eligibility based on student assignment
e Reassignments and transfers
e Equal eligibility for bus transportation

All of the listed policies are important as they dictate how many students will be eligible and how many
buses will be needed in certain areas. The State funds 76% of the bus transportation, the County funds
20% and the remaining 4% is covered by other local funding.

CMS is ranked 9" in the nation’s top 100 school bus fleets and have the largest student transportation
system in North Carolina. In 2006-2007, CMS transported 85,000 students daily on 1,198 school buses.

Mayor Gary Knox stated that Dr. Gorman said there are over 100,000 bus stops. Ms. Thomas stated that
in many cases, 1 child will have more than 1 bus stop. The Choice Plan changed the dynamics of the
busing system by making 95% of CMS students eligible for transportation. This created a need for
additional buses, bus stops, and the number of buses servicing the same neighborhoods. CMS goes over





and above the State requirements for pick-up and drop-off of students by allowing bus stops in
neighborhoods.

Mayor Kincaid asked what impact rising gas prices were making on the bus transportation and if
Freightliner was making any improvements in new buses. Ms. Thomas explained the gas prices are
drastically affecting the budget and in the last two years the State has had to pay the Emergency
Contingency Fund to cover fuel costs. CMS is currently piloting a hybrid bus; however, the savings has
not been tremendous as the cost of the hybrid bus is $170K compared to $80K for a straight engine bus.
Mr. Jeter stated that as of January 1, 2007, the manufactures of large diesel vehicles had to make
changes in emissions to improve air quality.

Mr. Bensman asked if CMS is looking at the rising cost of gas and how the choice plan affects it. Ms.
Thomas stated that several board members are asking the hard questions and making suggestions on
how to have a more efficient transportation system. One suggestion was to have cluster stops where
children would meet at a central location. Another suggestion is to increase the walk distance for
middle and high school students when riding the bus.

Mr. Kimbrough asked how many kids drive to school. Ms. Thomas stated she did not have an exact
number system wide as it varies from school to school.

Mayor Knox stated that he had invited Dr. Gorman to come observe the busing system set up for
Cannon School that takes place at the Peninsula Club. The system involves three buses (elementary,
middle, and high school) that line up in the parking lot and in a matter of 15 minutes over 95 students
have boarded the buses and are headed for school. Ms. Thomas said that she would mention the idea
again to Dr. Gorman and would like to maybe observe the system herself.

Mr. Larry Kopf of CATS presented the bus service provided in North Mecklenburg. Some facts about
CATS are as follows:
* Fares (seniors and disabled are half price)
0 Local-$1.30
0 Express $1.75
o Village Rider $0.65
* 80 Bus routes —included are
0 Lynx Blue Line
0 Special Transportation Service — STS (door to door service)
e 324 Buses

The Countywide Transit Service Plan is a 5 year plan that gives guidance for growth and change. Several
elements are taken into consideration when the plan is being developed; public participation, market
and travel analysis, and performance analysis. These elements help to determine the need for
additional park and ride lots, bus stops that have high or low ridership, and where new routes could
increase ridership.

The 77X North Meck Express route was split into two routes as it was carrying over 20,000 passengers a
day. Many of the passengers were boarding in Huntersville so CATS created the 48X route which now
allows for bus service in the North Meck area every 7 %5 minutes. It is estimated that in 2008, there will
be 300,000 Express riders.





The Village Rider system consists of four bus routes that service Cornelius, Davidson, and Huntersville.
Their hub location is at the North County library and provides a more direct service by allowing buses to
go off route and pick up or drop off those riders located within % of a mile from a route.

Ms. Ahearn asked what amount of ridership was coming from Mooresville. Mr. Kopf explained that
CATS lost many of their Park and Ride lots after Hurricane Katrina, the increase in riders verses lack of
available parking spaces is the reason for the decline of Mooresville ridership.

Currently there are two Park and Ride lots in North Meck, the Northcross lot and Gateway lot, which are
both located in Huntersville. The Countywide Plan recommended an addition Park and Ride lot in
Davidson and research is being done. Mayor Knox asked what level of capacity the Northcross and
Gateway lots were at. Mr. Kopf stated that Northcross is at 75-80% and Gateway is at 95% capacity.

The Vanpool service is yet another service provided by CATS. Mr. Kimbrough asked how many vans are
there and what disadvantage is there to using the system. Mr. Kopf stated that CATS owns 50 vans and
explained that in order for the vanpool to be successful, a group of people need to live and work within
close proximity to one another and must have similar work schedules. The group is established and a
driver is identified. CATS will give the driver a van and gas card to provide shuttle service for the group.
The riders, excluding the driver, pay a fee based on mileage.

Mr. Jeter asked if the rail system does not come north what impact will there be on the bus service. Mr.
Kopf stated it is possible that more Express buses would be needed, the Village Rider service might not
expand as quick, and the circulator bus service would not be implemented. Mr. Bensman asked if there
have been any studies done on bus service as it relates to the proposed transit station locations. Mr.
Kopf explained no firm study has been done but if rail system does happen a new express service would
need to be determined.

Mayor Kincaid asked what the impact of gas prices has done to ridership. Mr. Kopf stated the increase
has been continuous especially on the Express routes.

Mayor Kincaid stated that there has been a dramatic change in the bus system and it is something to be
proud of. Mr. Kimbrough asked if CATS was in all contiguous counties. Mr. Kopf stated they are in all
counties but Lancaster.

Mr. Bensman asked what the four towns could do to promote transit ridership (ex. Signage, more lots).
Mr. Kopf stated that he would like to partner with the towns and come up with something to promote
ridership. Mayor Kincaid stated that the clustering land use will also drive people to ride more. Mr. Kopf
also suggested that the towns keep transit in mind for new developments. Mayor Knox suggested that
CATS continue to get to know the towns better in order to promote transit that will meet the growing
needs of the towns. Mayor Kincaid invited Mr. Kopf and Ms. Thomas to forward any suggested action
items they might have for the committee to consider.

Adjournment
6:31PM






Transportation Task Force
1/23/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Randy Kincaid, Chairman Karen Floyd, Secretary
Brian Jenest Chris Ahearn
Carroll Gray Mitch Abraham

Charlie Jeter

Land Uses — Planning Directors, Karen Floyd (Cornelius), Kris Krider (Davidson), Jack Simoneau

(Huntersville), and Tim Brown (Mooresville)

Mayor Kincaid introduced the Planning staff from the four towns and explained that town’s Land Use
Plans would be presented.

Mr. Bill Coxe, Town of Huntersville, explained that our metropolitan area is faced with growth and how
future growth will be handled. The growth statistic shows that from 2005 to 2030, Mecklenburg
County’s population will grow to 540,000 and the big question is how we will accommodate that
population.

The following committees/plans were formed to provide guidance for the future.

Committee of 100 (1994) — recommended a $.01 sales tax to be used 25% on transit. A
collaborative effort was made towards a regional road plan, transit plan, and land use plan that
focused on the development coming to the five corridors surrounding Charlotte. In 1999 a %
cent sales tax was implemented for transit but road way funding received nothing.

UNCC (1992-1994) — replicated the advice of the Committee of 100.

Centers and Corridors (1996) — developed long term planning coordination between the local
corridors. Davidson, Cornelius, and Huntersville adopted similar land use plans and land
development codes that are referred to as the North Mecklenburg “Miracle. Charlotte joined
the ranks in 1996 and developed a transit plan, long term transit option, and continued road
investment.

2025 Transit/Land Use Plan (1998) — final document stated that transit and land use must be
integrated.

Mr. Zach Gordon, Town of Huntersville, detailed the current and future land use plans and gave a brief
overview shown below:

1970’s and early 1980’s: 4 town’s land use pattern characterized by Low density residential &
limited commercial

Late 1980’s to mid 1990Q’s: Suburban density residential land use, supported by commercial
growth along major corridors

Late 1990’s to present:

Higher density residential development; mixed-use nodes; employment centers; transit-
oriented development (TOD)






The regional population growth for the Lake Norman/I-85 corridor shows in 1990 the population was
91,000 and by 2007 it had grown to 262,000. In comparison with the four town’s population growth,
1990 showed 36,000 and by 2007 it had increased to 112,500. The growth projections provided by
Charlotte DOT shows that between the years 2007-2030 the Lake Norman/I-85 Corridor will increase by
65% and the four towns will increase by 90%. Mayor Kincaid asked what the percentage rate of growth
was. Mr. Gordon stated approximately 2% annually. Money magazine ranked the top 100 fastest
growing cities in the country showing Huntersville as 46" and Cornelius as 52™.

Mr. Kris Krider explained the significance for Small Area Plans and the benefit overall benefit to doing it
collectively is to create a sustainable environment with connectivity. The purpose for a Small Area Plan
is to encourage investment and manage growth in overall sprawl. The plans are detailed and also
inform the developer of the town’s expectation.

Mr. Bill Coxe explained that he has been involved in the update process of the regional travel model
since the early 1990s. The travel model is updated every 3-4 years. The computer modeling projections
for population has been too low; therefore, the projections for transportation were also too low. When
there is a high concentration of employment and a high concentration of residential, the projection for
travel between the two will also be high. Future street connectivity is essential in creating alternate
routes for the projected travel increase.

Mr. Gordon stated that the bottom line is more roads are needed and the widening of 1-77 will not
eliminate traffic congestion. Huntersville has completed three thoroughfare plans that at some point
will be needed. Ideally, development will bare a large part of the cost.

Mr. Tim Brown, Mooresville, the planning entity of the region has collectively worked together over a
decade to fundamentally embrace the land use plans. The commonality through the towns land use
planning principals that are backed up by zoning precepts extend over 120 square miles. The concept of
NODES links the measure of transportation corridors and is significant to all of the planning precepts.
The NODES focus urban form to key locations and provide choice on how services are delivered within
the communities.

QUESTIONS:

Mr. Jeter asked what will happen to the transit oriented districts if rail does not come. Mr. Krider stated
that the growth of Davidson’s downtown area will not be to the magnitude anticipated. Mr. Brown
added that transit itself is not the solution; it is a part of a regional solution for the transportation issues.

Mr. Jeter asked if land use plans with transit promote the reduction of auto driven mind set. Mr. Brown
explained that a better grasp on transportation is done through land use. Mr. Coxe explained that
transit is an organizing tool and a travel mode but will not take away a lot of automotive travel. Mr.
Krider stated there is a cost benefit side to moving people by mass transit (i.e. air quality).

Mr. Jeter asked how the towns collectively use a common land plan when differences of opinions come
into play. Mayor Kincaid stated that as public officials the data provided by Mr. Coxe was never looked
at in terms of liking the outcome. Since it has been determined that the outcome in not liked, the key
now is to ensure the same mistakes are not made again.





Mayor Kincaid asked if the roads are conducive to potential development. Mr. Brown stated that
NCDOT funding is strapped and infrastructure is going to be a local burden. Mooresville has shifted the
burden from one sector to another by requiring traffic impact analysis be done by the developer to
determine what the traffic impact of a new development would be. Mr. Krider referenced the Bailey
Road Extension, Robert Walker, and Davidson-Concord connections when explaining how funds from
NCDOT, Cornelius, CMS, Davidson, and the developer allowed for a connection listed on the
thoroughfare plan for many years. Mr. Gordon stated that if development does not pay for new road in
large part, the roads will not get done; however, the bigger issue is the structural way roads are funded.
New development will not address current problems. Mr. Coxe explained that the private sector will not
float much so the public sector will need to be collaborative when local funding proposals are made.

Mayor Knox stated that as the region becomes more urbanized it is important to have the ability to plan
for future growth.

Representative Thom Tillis addressed the committee and explained the following key factors to consider
when requesting funds from Raleigh:
e There are three other members of the General Assembly
0 Senator Charlie Dannelly who sits on every committee on the senate.
0 Representative Andrew Saunders sits on the Transportation Committee.
0 Senator Malcolm Graham sits on the Transportation Committee
e Understanding of TIP
*  What MUMPO stands for
¢ Understand who are the members of the MTC that will be making the decision on funding of the
commuter rail and engineering study of the north line.

Mr. Carroll stated that the plan is good need but there is a need to make it better. Mr. Jeter stated it is
not whether or not the plan is good it is the ability to live by the plan as it relates to zoning.

Mayor Kincaid stated that when looking at a development plan, the consequences for the rest of the
community and long term consequences should be considered.

Mr. Jenest stated that the four towns have land use plans that come together but questioned if the four
towns ever talked about the plans. Mr. Gordon explained that the regional roads that tie all of the
towns together need to be identified and then locally support the network.

Mayor Kincaid stated that the region should be guided by set of principles, follow the set principles, and
force the elected officials to follow that vision statement. Mr. Jeter stated that Huntersville does not
have a clear vision statement but they have agreed to establish one. Mr. Gordon stated that if
Mooresville need to be happy with their outcome as they voted to adopt the plan.

Mayor Kincaid suggested that a regional vision be created and try to figure out how to slow the growth
rate from 2% annually to 1%.

Adjournment
7:02PM






Transportation Task Force
1/30/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Randy Kincaid, Chairman Karen Floyd, Secretary Mayor Jill Swain
Brian Jenest Chris Ahearn Mayor Jeff Tarte
Carroll Gray Mitch Abraham Mayor Bill Thunberg
Charlie Jeter Lawrence Kimbrough Mayor John Woods

Gary Knox

Land Uses — Planning Directors

Mr. Bill Coxe explained that thoroughfare planning for Mecklenburg County started reaching into north
Mecklenburg in 1977. The area identified in the thoroughfare planning under the state and federal
guidelines to become urbanized was the area just under Huntersville. Roadway mapping is used in local
Ordinances to protect right-of-way and the same is done with Greenways/Bikeways mapping.
Connections are still missing to Rowan and Cabarrus Counties and there is a need to plan for better
connectivity. Land use patterns that put things close together allow for usable greenways and bikeways.
On average, most people will only walk % or % mile and ride a bike 1-2 miles. It all depends on the
quality of the walk or ride.

Mr. Gordon explained that Huntersville’s greenway plan models the County’s but also has tiered routes
that as development occurs the developer would be required to build as part of their open space
requirements.

Mr. Chris Bauer, Mooresville Transportation Planner, explained that Mooresville has comprehensive
transportation plan. The pedestrian and bicycle plans will be developed with grant money and also
coordinated with Davidson to ensure that connections are made. A unique piece is called the “Collector
Street” plans which are local streets that will most likely be built by developers as development occurs.
There 84 miles of existing road that have been identified as Collectors and have proposed 23 miles of
new roadways as Collectors. They will provide connectivity for short trips without using Hwy 115. Chris
Mooresville is adopting a new zoning ordinance that will include a connectivity index. The index is a
formula used for new development that takes the number of street segments in the development
divided by the number of intersections to determine the street index. The street index will coincide with
the land use plan. Connectivity for north/south is not a big issue in Mooresville; however, east/west
connectivity has only one, NC150, which is most congested.

Mr. Coxe stated that the likelihood of Hwy 115 becoming a main thoroughfare is not probable so it is
important to provide alternatives.

Mr. Jeter asked if it is a matter of “build it, they will come”. Mr. Coxe stated that it starts with the land
use pattern. Mr. Gordon explained that as development occurs the developer would be required to
build their portion of the network. Mayor Kincaid stated that requiring the developer to build a portion
is not the issue, the issue is more homes that than create more congestion. Mr. Gordon explained that
the developer will build their portion of road which does not necessarily complete the connectivity. The





decision to finish the connectivity would be left up to the town. Mayor Knox stated that land use will
dictate where developers can develop.

Mr. Coxe explained that Huntersville has established standards so if a developer does not meet the
intersection standard there is a “Do No Harm” clause that the developer needs has to find a way not to
adversely impact the intersection. They do not have to fix it but they cannot make it any worse. Mayor
Kincaid asked if the clause covered Davidson and Cornelius as well. Mr. Coxe stated that Cornelius and
Davidson have not identified standards for their intersections. Mr. Jeter asked if a TIA could encompass
the other towns. Mr. Gordon explained that improvements outside the jurisdictions are not
enforceable. Mayor Thunberg suggested creating an inter-local TIA that would require a developer to
consider the traffic impact as a region and not just the development area. Mayor Thunberg stated that
in order to be reasonable under the law, similar plans and indexes would have to be adopted.

Mayor Tarte stated that to determine traffic impact by new development, a 5 mile radius should be used
to not necessarily solve the issues but to adequately address them. Mayor Swain recommended the
committee take a vote on that concept.

Mr. Coxe referenced the installation of Exit 25 in Huntersville. The interchange changed the world by
creating additional development opportunities other than Northcross (i.e. Birkdale, Kenton Place, the
expansion of Northcross).

Mr. Krider stated that as the four towns use similar land use language it would seem fair to developers
that the similar transportation languages should also be used measures (i.e. standards for measuring
intersections, measuring how much the TIA should be). Maybe one APFO with similar language and one
Transportation Planner that has the ability to review subdivision plans in the context of how it affects
the four towns and counties and also creates an advocate for the region. Mayor Knox asked if that type
of service could be provided by Centralina Council of Government. Mr. Krider stated that COG,
MUMPO, NCDOT don’t always understand the complexity of the issue; however, if you ask Mr. Coxe
about Davidson problems he understands.

Mr. Jeter asked Mr. Krider if he was advocating for a Transportation Planner to oversee all four towns.
Mr. Krider stated he was.

Mayor Kincaid asked the Planning Directors what they would like to see in the committee report.

e Mr. Simoneau, Huntersville, explained that he has been in the planning business for 25 years
and challenged the room to find four communities that have an open line of communication on
what is happening in the communities and how to make it work. Every month the four towns’
Planning Departments meet to discuss transit.

0 Collaboration between counties, cities, and MPOs is what NCDOT is looking for.

e Mr. Krider, Davidson

0 Regional connectivity matters
0 Quality of life issues
0 Four towns being consistent in standards and design

Mr. Kimbrough stated that the committee is right on.





Mr. Carroll suggested that a plan needs to be created and ensure that it is not generalized. The towns
have never stood united but one voice is much stronger.

Mayor Tarte suggested setting the priorities, sending the message, incorporate commonality, and have
accountability.

Mayor Thunberg stated show citizens results by making the intersection improvements under the
town’s control.

Mr. Simoneau explained that the planning process is to identify issues and options, prioritize the task,
collect and interpret the date, evaluate the impact, review, and then implement.

Mayor Kincaid stated that the following goals were possible with the four town’s collaboration:
* More money
e Institutionalize regional cooperation
e Institutionalize leveraging with the State

Mayor Kincaid further stated the report needed to have life with authority and substantial revenue
source.

Mr. Carroll suggested an annual meeting on past and future visions.

Adjournment
6:31PM






Transportation Task Force
1/9/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Randy Kincaid, Chairman Karen Floyd, Secretary Mayor Swain, Huntersville
Mitch Abraham Chris Ahearn Mayor Tarte, Cornelius
Jim Bensman Carroll Gray Mayor Woods, Davidson

Brian Jenest Charlie Jeter
Andrew Grant, Ex. Director

Widening 1-77 — Bill Coxe, Town of Huntersville

Mr. Coxe gave a summary on the creation of 1-77 (Attachment 1). Roadway planning is a 20-25 year
forecast and in 1990, it was projected that by 2040 there would be a“need for 8 lanes on |-77. The
Interstate links Charlotte to Ohio. The NCTIP (Transportation Improvement Plan) is the State’s seven
year document which programs the transportationimoeney. In 1996, the NCTIR ineluded project 1-3311
to widen [-77 from I-85 to 1-485 and then in 1998, the Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act
added an earmark to widen |-77 from J485,to Sam Furr Roadwith a total cost estimate of approximately
S$83M. Congress directs the funding of'an earmark to the State oen how the funding will be spent. When
the Environmental Assessment document was created, it called'fon8 lanes on I-77 from 1-85 to 1-485 and
6 lanes up to Hwy. 73 (Sam Furr Road) with a\cost estimate of over S200M. TIP’s are updated every two
years. In 2001, another TIPswas created to cohvert Langtree Road bridge (Exit 33) into an interchange
and widen Brawley School Road with an I-77 interchange. The widening of 1-77 from -85 to 1-485 was
completed in 2005 and the northbound general pufpose lane fromI-485 to Exit 23 was completed in
2006.

Interest wasgsparked, by the Governor and Secretary‘of \Transportation on the use of High Occupancy
Vehicle (HOV) lanes, which provides travel by more, peaple without changing the vehicle capacity. A
Categorical Exclusion (CE) environmental document was done to support taking two inside median
general purpose lanes and converting them to HOV lanes along with modifications at the 1-85
interchangeto allow for a southbound HOV bypass.

The following are eight specific TIP projects, descriptions, and cost estimates associated:

TIP Project # | Project Description Cost Estimate
I-3311A Widen |-77from I-85 to 1-485 $68,200,000
I-3311B Widen I-77 from 1-485 to NC73 $33,700,000
1-3311C NB/SB I-77 HOV lanes from NC 16 to 5" Street $29,000,000
[-3311D I-77 NB general purpose lane from 1-485 to Exit 23 $ 5,995,000
-3311E Widen I-77 from |-85 to Brookshire Freeway $16,000,000
1-4410 Upgrade Exit 33

1-4733 Rebuild Exit 28 $33,500,000
I-4750 Widen I-77 from NC73 to 1-40 $525,800,000






A feasibility study known as “Fast Lanes” includes |-77. More information can be found at
www.fastlanes.org. The study will determine the technical, financial and institutional feasibility of
dedicating lanes on major highways in the Charlotte region for active traffic management. It is expected
to be completed by summer 2008.

Mr. Coxe provided a traffic count comparison shown between 1-77 interchanges. The LRTP has
anticipation for funding of widening 177.

Average Daily Traffic Counts

I-77 Interchanges 1990 1992 1994 | 1997 2000 2002 2004 2006
Exit 23 and Exit 28 43,700 | 52,700

Exit 23 and Exit 25 (new) 59,500 | 815000 | 80,000 | 81,000 | 86,000 | 88,000
Exit 25 and Exit 28 56,700 4¢76,500 , 77,000 | 77,000 | 82,000 | 87,000
Exit 28 and Exit 30 47,100 | 51,900 | 56,2007 74,800 79,000 | 79,000 | 85,000 | 91,000
Exit 30 and Exit 33 43,200 | Noinfo | 516500"| 68,900 | 73,000 | 73,000 | 77,000 | 84,000
Exit 33 and Exit 36 Noinfo | Noinfo JfNoinfo | Noinfo | 53,000 |,53,000 | 57,000 | 60,000
Exit 36 — North Noinfo | Noinfo | Noiinfo | Noinfo | 48,000 48,000 | 46,000 | 53,000

The Long Range Transportation Plan (LRTP),anticipates funding for the widening of I-77. A study was
conducted called the I-77 Sub Area Study (I-85 to,NC150).

The study recommended the following:
e 4 general purposeflanesiin.each direction,
e 2 HOV lanes located in the center of 1-77,
¢ the shoulders'to be strengthened in order to operate buses'on them,
¢ no additional general purpose interchangesother than those listed in the 2002 TIP,
e add interchanges forbus cehnection,in and out of HOV lanes for buses,
* land metering
¢ 4 necessity for transitiin the corridor (rail and bus),
e “creating land use patterns is important

There has been suggestion of using the shoulder lanes of 1-77 and 1-485 during peak hours, however,
more research needs, to occur and an environmental document would need to be done if it's feasible.
This concept would help,for a short period of time at minimal cost. Ultimately it comes down to funding
and the States seven year, programming document (NCTIP) states how the money is intended to be
spent.

The widening of I-77 is a must long term and the further apart the interchanges the better for traffic
management. Mayor Swain stated that during the air quality meeting the group learned that the
balance of traffic congestion and vehicle speed affects air quality. Mr. Coxe confirmed that the optimum
speed is between 40-45mph.

Mr. Coxe explained that by utilizing the HOV lanes, it teaches people to change their behavior. There
are several ways to manage the HOV lanes in order to keep it at a certain capacity; time restraints,
vehicle occupancy limits, and pricing. The ultimate goal is to ensure that the user has a consistent
experience when using the HOV lanes. Mayor Swain asked if our region is beneath capacity in the HOV






lane. Mr. Coxe stated the HOV lane capacity is below but it’s alright as it ensures the stability of that
lane.

Mr. Coxe explained that optimizing an interchange is critical. The Town of Huntersville is going to study
the reconfiguration of Exit 25 to better optimize the interchange. In the Sub Area Plan it recommends
ramp metering which uses a signal at the end of the ramp and main line sensors that monitor traffic
gaps that help the main line operate.

Mr. Coxe stated that another option to promote transit is to have bus lanes that do not directly compete
with traffic by creating ramps in/out of the HOV lanes up to existing bridges specifically designed for
buses and emergency access vehicles.

Mayor Kincaid summarized with Mr. Coxe that by adding one lane in each direction, morning rush hour
traffic on 1-77 could handle an additional 2,000 cars per hour at.a’cost estimate of $54M or $37M
without HOV lanes. To widen from Exit 25 to 33 the.€ost estimate would $143M. Mr. Coxe explained
that cost estimate was a rough estimate at best a$ there is no cost associated with crossing the lake.
Mayor Tarte asked if all 8 lanes would be done ‘over the lake or if just portions. Mr. Coxe stated that
part of the planning process has not yet been done.

Mr. Coxe was asked by Mayor Tarte and Mr. Grant to explainshow a TIP is changed, how a congressional
earmarks works, as well as, how MUMPO-Mecklenburg-Unian Metropolitan Planning Organization and
integrates with the Towns. Mr. Coxe explained that federal law states that if a metropolitan center city
has a population of 50,000 or more ‘must establish a Transpertation Advisory Committee or
Metropolitan Planning Organization in order to receive any,federallmoney. MPQO’s under federal law
have two powers; 1-can(tell the State no on spendingsfederal meney on State projects, 2-control over
MPO direct allocationmoney, of which the State can say yes or no to. A long range transportation plan
has to be adopted and updated. In the LTRP, the"MPO is required to produce developed forecasts for
the future based on population, revenue, projects. “A project list is adopted, updated every two years,
and then sent'to the, State as the “wish list”»The bottom line is that the State and the MPO have to
collaborate because'it is required'by the Federal Government.

Mr. Gray‘asked about the State’s equity formula for projects. Mr. Coxe explained that the formula used
for distributionyhas a good and bad side." The good side is that every two years there will be money
allocated. Thebadynews is that the formula is'hot thought to be equitable.

The TIP is adopted by the Board of Transportation every two years but can be amended at any point.
The MPO must agree with TIP. The reality of a congressional earmark is that there is no new money and
the MPO then has a tough decision to make by deciding what project has money taken away. An
earmark by congress is project specific and it does not allow for the money to be spent any other way.
The MPO can override the congressional earmark but those amounts will the come off the top of the
State allocation funded by the Federal Government.

Mr. Bensman asked how much money is allocated to our region per year. Mr. Coxe stated
approximately S60M but Mr. Jenest clarified it to be $90M.

Mr. Bensman asked why the MPO is opposed to the interchange at Westmoreland. Mr. Coxe stated that
the MPO had not specified its position for that interchange and the LRTP has a list of 200 plus projects.
The MPO ranked that project last but the Town Board requested it be placed in the LRTP.





Mr. Jenest stated that North Mecklenburg has very few votes compared to Charlotte. Mr. Jeter asked
how the MUMPO votes are calculated. Mr. Coxe explained that the calculation is based on population,
small towns get 1 vote (Cornelius, Davidson), Huntersville has 2 votes, Mecklenburg County has 6, and
Charlotte has 16. Mr. Jeter then asked if there was anything prohibits the towns from raising their own
money to fund road improvements. Mr. Coxe stated that the MPO can keep a project of regional
significance from being constructed regardless of the funding. Mr. Coxe stated that the MPO dictates
funding sources; however, the State Board of Transportation can pick any project listed to be added to
the TIP. The TIP list can be found on the NCDOT website www.ncdot.gov link Projects and Studies —
Division 10. Ms. Ahearn asked when Mooresville would have the next opportunity to participate in
MUMPO. Mr. Coxe stated the year 2010.

Mayor Woods asked if the widening of I-77 should be considered high priority due to heavy congestion
and lack of money. Mr. Coxe stated said “no”. Mayor Tarte statedthat in a questionnaire he posed for
the Planning Workshop, the top two questionnaire answers were; to secure additional funding from
NCDOT and widen |-77. Mayor Swain stated that spending everything on‘the widening of I-77 it will not
solve the community traffic issues. One cannot be done without fixing the other.

Mr. Bensman suggested the towns put together a long range infrastructure plan that\will have the most
impact. Create a map to show what canibe done together and what should be done to get the biggest

result.

Mr. Grant suggested that improvements made to the'surrounding corridors (ex. NC73, NC16, NC150)
could create a workable network when grid lack,occurs on |-77.

Mayor Kincaid stated time was up and'the meeting wias adjourned.

Adjournment
6:54PM






Transportation Task Force
2/06/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Randy Kincaid, Chairman Karen Floyd, Secretary Mayor Jill Swain
Andrew Grant Chris Ahearn Mayor John Woods
Carroll Gray Mitch Abraham

Charlie Jeter Gary Knox

North Corridor Rail — David Carol (CATS)

Mr. David Carol, CATS gave presentation on commuter rail system and benefits. www.ridetransit.org

The route from the Charlotte Gateway Station to Mount Mourne is 25 miles using the existing Norfolk
Southern Railroad right-of-way. The north line corridor is the least expensive because of the existing
right-of-way. Upgrading the tracks and securing the crossings will be a minimal cost. Mooresville is
proposing to use TIF to extend service from Davidson to Mount Mourne.

Service will be phased to meet the market but it will be a commuter rail service verses the light rail
system in Charlotte. The commuter rail system is designed to be a rush hour congestion relief program
for bringing people into Charlotte or employment centers and operate hourly during the course of the
day.

The importance of the transportation system is that there are no major roadways that connect to
Charlotte and there are vast open green spaces where growth will occur. The rail line provides another
form of transportation. It will act as a buffer for retail and office.

The FTA Model measures how many people and how many trips are going to happen in all of
Mecklenburg County and does not differentiate between the five corridors. The modeling shows there
will be 4,600 trips made between Mount Mourne and Charlotte with the assumption that I-77 is
completed and there is no congestion. The transit impact is equivalent to one extra lane on I-77 from 7-
8 a.m. and 5-6 p.m.

The following numbers are based on the environmental impact statement by Charles Lesser that show
how transit will reduce automotive use:
e Public Transit For Commute To Work
— Population within 1 Mile of Rail Line (2030)
e Towns: 47,000
e  Charlotte: 31,000
— Employment within 1 Mile of Rail Line (2030)
e Towns: 33,000
e Charlotte: 85,000
¢ Mixed-Use Station Communities For Access To Retail & Services
— 14,000 new residences by 2025
— 5.8 million sq. ft. office & retail





The MTC adopted the 2030 Plan in 2006. The Northeast Corridor engineering was approved last week. A
briefing will be done with the Charlotte City Council on February 11" in hopes of approval on February
25" to move forward with the engineering. The project completion date is set for 2011-2012; however,
funding most likely push that back 1-2 years. Key issue is the rail line exists and the Northeast is
currently in the queue. If the towns decide not to fund the rail, it will be 10-15 yrs before MTC and CATS
could review it again. The goal for the towns is to decide if the rail is coming or not so that everyone can
move forward.

The North Corridor does not qualify for federal funds. The funding shortfall is currently $70 million in
Mecklenburg County and to extend the system from Davidson to Mount Mourne will be $18 million
additional with Mooresville responsibility being approximately 25%.

Financing alternatives:
A financing mechanism known as a RRIF Loan (Railroad Rehabilitation Improvement Financing) is

financed by completely by the Federal Government. Under a 25-year loan there are no payments the
first two years, interest only the next three years, and then interest and principal afterwards.

Annual Combined Annual Combined
Municipalit Total Required Payment by Payment by
pality q Towns/County Town/County
(2014-2016) (2017-2037)
Davidson, Cornelius,
Huntersville, and Meck County S44 million $2.2 million $3.9 million
(combined)
Charlotte and Meck County s - -
(combined) $26 million $1.5 million $2.3 million
Mooresville - -
(Mount Mourne) $15 million $825,000 $1.3 million

Another choice is known as TIF (Tax Increment Financing). Under a 25-year loan with two years
capitalized interest and three years interest-only and 20 years at full payment.
¢ Towns, City & County contribute a portion of tax revenues from new development in the station
areas to finance the local share
e County assumes 70-75% of cost due to higher tax rate
* Projected tax revenue anticipated to exceed cost of rail debt service & cost of local services
e Requires approval of Towns, City & County

Municipality Total Town Annual Payment by Annual Payment by
Share Required Town (2014-2016) Town (2017-2037)
Huntersville (3 stations) $5.9 million $346,791 $556,252
Cornelius (1 station) $2.2 million $128,273 $205,750
Davidson (1 station) $2.7 million $153,927 $246,900
Mooresville (1 station) $15 million $825,000 $1.3 million
Allocated per station

The challenge with TIF is that development is slow to start and then starts accelerating.





Ms. Ahearn asked why the Mooresville share was so much higher. Mr. Carol stated that Mecklenburg
County has a % cent sales tax.

Other local funding share options:
* Increased CATS’ Share
0 Delays implementation of other corridors, e.g., Streetcar
e Contribution From Developers
0 Some station-related costs
* Increased State Share
0 Anticipated 25% share may already be challenge
e Other Options
0 Special tax districts around stations
0 Gradual increase in vehicle tax for road & transit improvements
0 Seek Federal earmarks

Mayor Knox questioned if the assumption of Charlotte’s buy-in a bigger issue then whether or not the
towns accept their share. Mr. Carol explained that the amount of development around the two stations
in Charlotte is so huge that it is so financeable and should not be an issue.

Mr. Carol explained that the light rail line does not have stations there are platforms from the south end
through to Seventh Street. NCDOT has assembled approximately 30 acres of property for the Charlotte
Gateway Station which will be across the street from the new baseball stadium. They are in the process
to find a master developer to develop the site that would include a CATS bus facility, Amtrack Station, a
new Greyhound facility, and the street car will go right pass it.

Mayor Knox asked why the Bryton Station is not showing as paid for under the Huntersville portion. Mr.
Jeter stated that the Bryton TIF does not include the transit station. Mr. Carol clarified that the TIF for
Bryton is paying to relocate and rebuild the rail line.

Mayor Kincaid stated the most important question to ask is if the benefits of the rail outweigh the cost.
Mr. Jeter stated that the question is easy to answer once the engineering structure is determined.

Mayor Kincaid stated that the RRIF loan is the secret weapon, in it makes the project doable. Mr. Carol
explained that financially it is feasible but the issue is whether or not the towns want to do. Mr. Gray
asked what the lead time would be for RRIF approval. Mr. Carol stated approximately 90 days.

Mr. Jeter asked what happens with the back and forth timing of the rail. Mr. Carol explained that trains
will run in both directions every % hour between the hours of 6AM — 8AM and late night bus service will
be provided after 7PM as the freight line will run in the evenings.

Mr. Jeter asked if there were any plans to convert the north rail line from heavy diesel commuter rail to
the light rail and if so, would that take new tracks. Mr. Carol stated that the only way a light rail line is
possible would be to build a parallel line which will most likely never happen.

Mayor Swain stated that as part of the puzzle you will have the commuter rail, I-77, and the bus service
allowing options for everyone.





Mr. Jeter asked what the impact projection of the rail arms and street traffic. Mr. Carol stated that the
environmental impact statement basically says that the roads are congested today and will be
congested tomorrow. The timing of the rail arms will be equivalent to an additional traffic light.

Mr. Stan Thompson, Mooresville Chamber of Commerce Hydrogen Economic Advancement, explained
the benefits of using hydrogen rail would reduce the cost per mile by $2 million.

Mayor Swain asked for additional discussion on the infrastructure costs. Mr. Carol explained that the
towns Planners have worked with CATS and Cherokee to identify the priority list if commuter rail were
to move forward. Mayor Kincaid asked Mr. Carol to continue to work with the towns Planners.

Adjournment
6:56PM






Transportation Task Force
2/13/08 Meeting

Minutes
Members Present:
Randy Kincaid, Chairman Karen Floyd, Secretary
Andrew Grant Charlie Jeter Mayor John Woods
Carroll Gray Mitch Abraham Mayor Jeff Tarte
Chris Ahearn Gary Knox Mayor Bill Thunberg
Mitch Abraham Brian Jenest
North Corridor Rail

Mr. Carol, CATS, explained that the north corridor budget includes enough funding for a parking
platform with bus access and station building. Each station is approximately $3M but does not include
any off campus (i.e. roads, sidewalks). The towns will need to decide if the off campus improvements
that fall under the CIP be accelerated to coincide with the construction of the north corridor. The off
campus improvements are important in order to make transit oriented development work and for
stations to function and integrate with the existing surroundings. The South Corridor line construction
cost was $46M a mile, the Northeast line construction will exceed $60M a mile, and the North Corridor
construction cost will be approximately S10M.

Ms. Floyd, Town of Cornelius, explained that Cornelius will need to do approximately $11M in transit
infrastructure with some things not required but that are necessary to allow the station to function
better. The Transit District is about 355 acres with approximately 172 acres remaining for potential
development. The Antiquity development will have approximately 1,100 homes and 300,000 square
feet of office/retail that will help create a downtown feel. The rail is considered a perk to Cornelius.

The Town has identified the following improvements needed to support the station:

* Hickory Street
0 Extension
0 Signalization
0 Crossing Upgrade

e Zion Avenue
0 Widening
0 Extension north/south
0 Additional parking

* Catawba Avenue
0 Install grade crossing
0 Sidewalks &Crosswalks
0 Pedestrian signals

e Main Street/NC115
0 Street improvements
0 Sidewalks
0 Curb/gutter





0 On-street parking
0 Relocate utilities
e Additional connectivity
0 UPWP connections around transit
e Developer paid infrastructure
0 Responsible for everything east of Hwy 115
0 Greenway Connection

= Signage
= Path improvements/accessibility
= Lighting

= Trail furniture
e Downtown Block Plan
0 Identifies parking decks

Mr. Gray asked what the bulk of the $11M cost will be. Ms. Floyd stated that most of the cost will be
incurred by the Zion Street improvements and burying the utility lines.

Mr. Gray asked where the station location for Cornelius would be. Ms. Floyd stated that the station will
be located in the Antiquity development along with 4-5 parking decks.

Mr. Jenest asked if the transit station was located in the watershed. Ms. Floyd stated everything east of
the interstate falls under the Post Construction Ordinance which affects detention; however, Antiquity
was approved and developed prior to the ordinance so it is exempt.

Mr. Kris Krider, Town of Davidson, explained that their goal regardless of transit is to create walkable
neighborhoods. The Antiquity covered bridge created connectivity of South Street for Cornelius and
Davidson. The initiatives in the transit area were not just focused on road connection for riders of the
train but on how the connection improvements would bring people through the towns on a daily basis.
The Potts to Sloan Connection is a key connection that will create a local connection that by-passes Hwy
115 and bring people to the transit area. A key intersection that directly impacts the Potts to Sloan
Connection is Hwy 115, Potts, and Davidson Street and there are currently three design alternatives
being study to come up with the best solution.

Davidson’s potential TIF bonding capacity over ten years is $28M.

The potential candidate projects are as follows:

Rail Improvements $10M
Local CIP Projects
e Potts Sloan area improvements S1M
* Downtown parking deck S 6M
¢ Downtown road improvements $5M

TOTAL Potential Candidate Projects $22M

The transit district that has been created will ensure that the downtown area remains vital and that the
near term projects fund and energized the area as transit comes on line.





The Town of Davidson sees the transit stop as the center of the community with an increase to in-town
residential growth.

Mr. Jenest asked if higher density will be created by transit. Mr. Krider explained that density is not the
issue, the issue is design and how it fits Davidson. It's a matter of contributing to the overall ridership
without compromising the town.

Mr. Jack Simoneau, Town of Huntersviile explained that Huntersville will have three transit stations;
Bryton, Gilead, and Sam Furr.

The infrastructure improvements for the proposed transit station areas are as follows:
SAM FURR
Essential
* Sewer Extension
* Hwy 115 Improvements
Desirable
e Road network (developer)
e Bridge Crossing NC-73
e Jamesburg Dr. Extension

TOWN CENTER

Essential

e Two-way Pair (parallel road to Hwy 115 will be Main Street)
* Two roundabouts

Desirable

e Church Street Improvements

BRYTON

Essential

* Already Accounted For

Desirable

e Parking Deck (partnership)

* Alexanderana/Eastfield connection

The 2025 build out for the transit areas are:
SAM FURR
e 945 Residential Units
e 489,000 sq. ft. office
e 123,000 sq. ft. retail

TOWN CENTER

e 935 Residential Units
e 246,605 sq. ft. office
e 289,340 sq. ft. retail





BRYTON

* Increased office capacity
e Higher quality office

* Additional Retail

Between the developers of Bryton and Mecklenburg County, there is approximately $29.5 million worth
of improvements. The majority of the cost will be spent on moving the rail line and allow for Hwy 115 to
be widened. Hambright Road will also extend into Bryton.

Mayor Kincaid stated that he was impressed with the fact that whether or not the train comes north,
the four towns have done a great job with inter-connection. Mr. Simoneau explained that a lot time and
thought between the towns has been important in ensuring that roads have not been created to go
nowhere.

Mayor Thunberg asked if Huntersville had an inter-local agreement with Mecklenburg County. Mr.
Simoneau stated that an inter-local agreement using COPS (Certificates of Participation) and the
developer pledge that the tax value would cover cost with the land as collateral

Mr. Chris Bauer, Town of Mooresville, explained that Legacy Village accounts for the Mount Mourne
Station and includes the roadway, pedestrian, station, and parking infrastructure.

The following infrastructure projects help to support the Mount Mourne Station:

*  Fairview-Alcove Bridge (most essential w/estimated cost of $12M)
0 Alternate non-interchange crossing of I-77
0 Provides easy access to residential areas west of I-77
0 Increases service delivery to the station area

* East/West Connector (estimated cost $7M)
0 Provides access to Hwy 115, Shearers Road, NC 3, and NC 152 from new I-77 exit
0 Recommended in Mooresville Comprehensive Transportation Plan (2007)
0 Increases connectivity to Mount Mourne

»  CATS Station Service Road (estimated cost S1M)
0 Provides enhanced access to station from Mount Mourne areas west of railroad
0 Recommended in Mooresville Comprehensive Transportation Plan (2007)
0 Increases connectivity to Davidson

* NC 115 Multi-use Path (estimated cost of $2.7M)
0 Connects downtown Mooresville to Davidson
0 Comprehensive Pedestrian Plan (2006) and Comprehensive Bicycle Plan (underway)
0 Provides non-motorized transportation access to station

Mayor Knox made a comment that by the year 2020; approximately 16,000 people will be employed
within one mile of Mount Mourne Station. Ms. Ahearn stated that Lowes Corporate will have between
8,000 — 10,000 employees at build out.

Mayor Knox stated that one of the challenges of the North Corridor commuter modeling under the
federal guidelines was because no reverse commutes were calculated. Ms. Ahearn added that Lowes
employees have expressed an interest in bus services provided from Charlotte, Huntersville, Cornelius





areas to Lowes Corporate. Mayor Knox further stated that every time you take a car off the road by way
of transit it reduces congestion.

Mayor Kincaid distributed a North Corridor Commuter Rail Findings and Recommendations list for the
committee to discuss and revise.

Mayor Knox expressed the importance of acknowledging that Charlotte and Mecklenburg County will
also benefit from the north line. The transit initiative has been guiding the land use patterns for more
than a decade. The ridership projections do not include reverse trips.

Mayor Tarte stated that the north line is very unique because it has destinations points at both ends.
Mr. Jenest stated that it is also important to state the rail line already exists.

Mayor Tarte stated that 70,000 people attend CPCC asked if the student enrollment at CPCC was ever
factored in for the ridership because students use multiple campus locations during their education. Mr.
Carroll explained that a station at CPCC’s North Campus was considered but due to the fact that the
campus stands alone in that area it was not factored in.

Mr. Jeter suggested adding Iredell County as a stakeholder in sharing the cost for the North Corridor.
Mayor Knox added “while capitalizing on extensive existing infrastructure” to the end of the last
sentence.

The North Corridor proposal has costs shared among the four towns, the city of

Charlotte, Mecklenburg County, and the State of NC, and CATS. There are many ways to

share the cost.

Mayor Thunberg asked that Williams Street be changed to reference Downtown Mooresville. Mr. Jeter
suggested adding “federal” in front of grant funds.
Ridership projections, using federally approved modeling, show 4600 riders per day. This
projection assumes that |-77 is widened to four lanes up to exit 36 at the time train
service begins. If that widening is not done, ridership on the north corridor will likely be
much higher. The temporary terminus for the line is Mount Mourne. The long-term
terminus is Williams Street, north of Mooresville. Once the line is built to Mount
Mourne, the extension to Williams Street will likely be eligible for grant funds.

Mayor Woods stated that the implementation of the north line timing and the widening of 1-77 are
critical.

Mayor Knox stated that another positive note to add is the popularity of the south line.

Mayor Thunberg suggested making a recommendation instead of a conclusion. The sale for commuter
rail needs to be made to the citizens.

Mr. Lucas, Huntersville Commissioner, suggested that the last sentence be strengthened to say the
partnership has to be both policy wise and financially.

The four towns are very eager to enter into the necessary inter-local agreements with

CATS, Mecklenburg County, Iredell County and the State on the funding allocations in

order to better understand the financial impacts on our towns.





Mr. Jeter asked if the towns could count on the County. Ms. Karen Bentley, Mecklenburg
County Commissioner, stated that she could not speak for her Board. Mr. Jeter stated that the
conditions presented last week are doable from Huntersville’s stand point; however, as
conditions worsen the political will changes. Mayor Knox asked Ms. Bentley if time frame of
April/May would be adequate time for the County Commission to review. Ms. Bentley urged

the time frame be the earliest possible.

Adjournment
7:02PM





